IN THE SUPREME COURT AND THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

FILED

ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

FEB 2 8 2008

JAMES SPENCER

OFFICE UP THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS

APPELLATE

VERSUS STATE OF NO. Loo T-Cp-01667-COA

APPELLEE

Appellant Drier APPEAL

Comes now Appellate James Spencer , Pro se . in the above style and numbered cause and files this , his Appeal appealing the order of Lownes Circuit Court order on Post Conviction No. 2005 __ 0016 __ CVl .

In support Appellate will show unto this court the following to, to wit.

T

The State asserts Appellate's claim on Post Conviction, Alleging that he could not have been sentenced or convicted as an habitual offender under a Plea agreement without being indicted under the status of being an habitual offender first, is without merits

Petitioner's Plea hearing is alleged to have taking place during the date of May 17, 2004. on the August 17, 2004 the state filed a motion to amend

petitioner's indictment. The motion to amend was filed three (3) months after petitioner's "Plea Agreement" was alleged to have taken place.

Rule 7.09 of uniform Rules of circuit and county practice permits an indictment to be amended, true! But the said rule does not allow and establish an amendment of indictment after criminal procedures involving the indictment has already been conducted. An indictment serves to give the accused / defendant fair notice, [Bullock v. State, 391so. 2d 601, 606 (Miss. 1980).] Petitioner had a right to be notified by an indictment that he would be pleading as an habitual offender before he accepted such plea the proper notice is by an indictment, no other vehicle will substitute.

An amendment of an indictment after a plea has been executed is an element of an improper inducement and deception. Such is prohibited by Rule 8.04 of uniform Rules of circuit and county practice.

The State tries to defeat it's neglect of neglecting to indict petitioner properly by an indictment , by stating during petitioner's plea hearing he were notified he would be sentenced as an habitual offender . Not considering the fact that a notice alone will not substitute as an indictment , the transcript the State is introducing as valid document (s) are forged document (s) . Later in this motion petitioner will address the said matter and will disclose document (s) from attorney Gray Goodwin that will support such claim .

II

This matter being raised in this is an issue which was presented in petitioner 's Post conviction. However, the State failed to address this matter in the aforesaid order.

Rule 8.04 (4) (b) of uniform Rules of circuit and county Practice institutes: When the defendant wishes to plead guilty to the offense charged it is the duty of the trial court to address the defendant personal and to inquire and determine that the accused understand the , nature and consequences of the plea , and maximum and minimum penalties provided by law .

The court failed to inform petitioner that his sentence was mandatory. Nowhere in the alleged transcript will this court find the State advising petitioner that his time would be mandatory. The lower court can not say

"the State advised the defendant that he would be sentenced as an habitual offender." Such will not justify the neglect of the state to advise petitioner of the maximum and minimum __ because there is no proof that petitioner was aware of the fact that an offender being sentenced as an habitual offender would receive a mandatory sentence. (Even if the alleged transcript were valid a violation has occurred here.) Notifying Petitioner that the maximum of his sentence was twenty - five years mandatory was a requirement neglected by the court to fulfill, and a fundamental element of executing a plea neglect.

Here petitioner will cite a case focusing directly on the requirement that the court notify a defendant of the fact of mandatory sentence . Vittitoe v. State , 556 so. 2d 1062 (Miss.1990) , conviction and sentence base on guilty plea must be reversed when defendant was not aware of mandatory sentence , at time of plea . The State can produce no records , documents , papers , etc. That will disclose petitioner was aware of a mandatory sentence .

Alexander v. State 605 so. 2d 1170 (miss. 1992); sander v. State 847 so. 2d 903, the trial court must make records showing that the defendant is advised of the maximum and minimum of sentence. See also Robert v, State m 820 so. 2d 790 (Miss. 2002). In the above cited case Vittitoe V. State, petitioner has already established that advising a defendant that a sentence is mandatory is a requirement of the maximum and minimum of Rule 8.04.

III

Petitioner raised the issue on Post Conviction that any transcript the State produced claiming that he attended a plea hearing was a fictitious document. The State did not entertain this issue in the order, petitioner is appealing. The State neglected to answer such matter.

Petitioner will present a supporting document from his attorney disclosing that certain assertions in the alleged transcript are false.

Petitioner wrote attorney Gray Goodwin on August 20,2007 (Goodwin being petitioner's last attorney). Petitioner inquired of Goodwin as to whether he was provided with a copy of a motion signed by him to enter a plea of guilty. Goodwin answered no and further asserted one does not exist in the court's file. As Goodwin being petitioner's attorney (last advocating for him) he

should possess such motion. Without one he could not have properly provided petitioner with effective counseling.

The State contradicts Goodwin's assertion that there is not a petition in the files. See lines 27-29 on page 2. The State asserts: There is a petition. Attorney Goodwin asserts differently. The state goes on to speak on the fictitious petition on page 3 and 5 of the transcript. If one part of the transcript was fabricated the rest is just as invalid.

The personal knowledge in the fictitious transcript disclosing on page 6 that petitioner had once used another last name is a matter which was revealed to the court in prior procedures. Petitioner has been convicted four (4) times, before the conviction which is now in question. It is common knowledge that this information would have surfaced before now -- if being placed in the front of a dexterous, professional function or province. Petitioner has been prosecuted by the judge alleged as conducting a plea hearing on the matter at issue at least twice, prior to this cause.

IV

Petitioner raised the issue of insufficient counsel on Post Conviction. The State did not entertain it in the order.

Petitioner's counsel violated Rule 2.1 (Advisor) of Miss. Rules Of Professional Conduct . Counsel did not on petitioner's cause properly advise petitioner. If the alleged transcript of petitioner's are authentic, petitioner's counsel should have advised petitioner that he was not accepting a plea by pleading to twenty- five (25) years. A plea is a procedure and /or action established to give an accused an opportunity to receive a lesser sentence. Petitioner could not receive over twenty-five (25) years under no circumstances . The statute (97- 17-23) does not allow. A SENTINCE under the said statute is prohibited from exceeding over twenty - five (25) years. Petitioner's attorney failed to properly advise petitioner, by not advising petitioner that he would receive the same sentence the state offered on a plea agreement that he would receive if he entertained a jury trial. Such conduct as the conduct executed by petitioner's counsel further violated Rule 1.3 of Mississippi Rules Of Professional Conduct .

Rule 2.1 institutes in representing a client an attorney shall exercise independent professional judgment and render candid advise. Rule 1.3 institutes

an attorney should act with commitment and dedication to the interest of client and with zeal in advocacy upon client's behalf.

Petitioner's attorney violated rule 1.3 further by not objecting to petitioner being sentenced under an habitual offender sentencing- law, knowing the indictment was not executed until three months after petitioner was alleged to have accepted the plea at issue.

Lockhart v. Hill,474 U.S. 52, 56 88 L. Ed 2d at 396, a defendant who pleads guilty to a crime is "prejudiced" by his counsel's "erroneous advice " if he would have insisted on going to trial -- if he would have been correctly informed. (Common knowledge speaks here: Even if petitioner's alleged plea was valid, petitioner would have never agreed to a plea if his attorney would have correctly advised him that he could only be sentenced to twenty - five (25) years even if he entertained a trial.)

Petitioner in support that his attorney fail to assist him on entertaining a jury trial as he requested, is appending a letter he addressed to the attorney. The same letter was presente on petitioner's Post -Conviction. The letter is labeled exhibit # 1.

A procedural default exist where any right was waived by counsel's lack of knowledge of a know rule of law by a controlling court . Gravley V . Mills , 87 f. 3d 779 . (Petitioner 's attorney was either intentionally ineffective and imprudent or he was illiterate to the law governing the time petitioner could receive if he attended trial . The counsel should have advised petitioned that pleading to a term of twenty - five (25) years was not a plea .)

Gravley V. Mills, 87 F. 3d 779 . further establishes, the most compelling evidence of counsel's incompetence is the failure to object to serious instance of prosecution misconduct. (The attorney failed to object to the misconduct of the prosecution using an order to amend -- an order which was executed three (3) full months after petitioner was alleged to have plead guilty. The order to amend being an order which allow the petitioner to be sentenced as an habitual offender .)

V

The state erred in not giving petitioner an evidentiary hearing. Petitioner should have be allowed an evidentiary hearing to present all claims presented in his Post Conviction. See Alexander v. State, 605 so. 2d at 768.

Alexander further establishes an evidentiary hearing is warranted when a question of fact exists concerning whether the defendant was prejudiced, whether he would not have entered a guilty plea had he been properly advised. (Petitioner raised in his Post - Conviction that he was not properly advise.)

RELIEF REQUESTED

Appellant request this court order that the mandatory sentence under the habitual offender's statute be removed, if this court find merits in part I of this petition. (The claim that an amendment of his indictment three (3) months after he was alleged to take and/or accept a pled was illegal.)

The appellant request this court remove the mandatory from his sentence if this court find that the state violated Rule 8.04 a (4) (b) of uniform Rules of circuit and county practice (as described in part II of this petition) by failing to inform the appellate of the maximum and minimum penalty.

Appellate request this court reverse his sentence and conviction if this court find the claim in part III this petition (claiming that the transcript of this cause are not authentic) to possess merits.

Appellate ask that if this court find that part IV of this motion possess merits that appellate's counsel was ineffective this court reverse his conviction.

Appellate request this court grant him an evidentiary hearing to present his claims presented in Post conviction, if this court find merits in part V of this petition.

James spencer feb. 28, 2008

こととがらしのと ひととべてと

Lamas somal COOSIZE AS ANZ DELLON MISTED DEREGIO FIRGAL COPLIZED OF HAZ APPENDER HOPENT Spaleog estate batical Aiv ear sisings esmal stallsgathant partesson of ei eint

Superme could of Apprello, Belly W.

Caspe. am, Chochapel, bus JOB!O.9 (LOUD) Sint 90 HOSI) (noting) &

DCC JOD .a.g (IASISIZI) GIOSON MICL DOOK ASISIZIA CHIROSIZIA) p.a. BOCKE. BM, CHOCHDAL

JAMES SPENLER

My Commission Expires. ed Notary Public in and for the

yan ni em ended at mone but hedrozelus

3800 County Rd 540 Delta Correctional Facility James Spincer #18233

Creemsood, 1118, 38930

Mugust 20th, 2007

AUG 3 0 2007

Gery Graduin, Attorney AI Law

Preese assist me on the following

Speneer) with a copy of the alluged petition to enter a Plear If the answer is yes please provide me (James Earl of guilty. Please answer and for check his II or no the Cuit Court for the (James tarl Spencer) to Enter a plea a copy of the alleged petition filed in Loundes County Cir-For I Spencer in Couse No. 2003 - obly - CRI Provide you with Did the Court upon appointing you to represent me Tames

Please provide me (James Earl Spencer) with a Copy of

せき ナラジンジ

Thanks in advance for any assistance you are able to grant me in the matter hereat.

Please answer back as soon as possible, time is on essence - further time is not on my side.

win represented me (James Earl Spencer) in.

I do not home duck aim of James and Harris anough county or a doughout at you sentiming the county flowed Mis. 39232

The requested documents requested and the questions informed are essential tor the filing of petitions to aid me in my endeavor to abtain freedom.

my (James Earl Spencer's) Sentencing Hearing held on the Same Soil date (Rugust 17, 2007), in which you (vary Crood-

of the transcripts to the hearing for me (James Earl Spencer) was Spencer) to withdraw the plea I James Earl Spencer) was alleged to have accepted, which was held on August 17,200].

alleged to have accepted, which was held on August 17,200].

A hearing in which you (Gary Goodwin) represented me (James Inching in which you and though an eader weithout holding.

Larl Spencer in. Any heavy.

Lother Farrow (n. 218 2020)

Deal Mr. Apresion

iosylase to your timery response to this LONGER TO THES MAHAR. I AM LOOKING Heial So that I may gat back to wash as laist sarcaind and this said charce. Tharacalforing has asid charces. Tharacalforing you me. Parson to fire the nacassing you me. Parson to fire the nacassing you that court for a fast and speade. La, M.S. Farslaw I am Raqueshinz for the Land and is a plan. I will not be alteaphing a plan. Stassaft. doly of in of ind al sold big I my I LANT SMIT 70 boissag LOUNC A WITHIN QU C'ESM S AT WORK SAIL HAD IT I CAN CLEAR (HAILS) SOUD HING A PSICH ON OHN'S CHARGE. MY DOE Said Charge of Burgilary of A Resident and 203-60004-CRI AMA I FAM ISS-60000-EQG Am energantly beging halld on Ind Ocquer no. A this time concerning the charge that Lay Ecasaba al shi brean sasand camal it

yours sening