VS.



MAR 2 1 2008

OFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS NO. 2007-CP-1667-COA

APPELLEE

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

#### BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

## APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: W. GLENN WATTS

SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

MISSISSIPPI BAR

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

SSUES ON APPEAL	3
TATEMENT OF THE FACTS	4
UMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT	6
RGUMENT PROPOSITION I	8
THE RECORD REFLECTS A VOLUNTARY PLEA AND A VALID AMENDMENT OF SPENCER'S INDICTMENT TO REFLECT HIS HABITUAL OFFENDER STATUS.  PROPOSITION II	8

## PROCEDURAL HISTORY:

On May 17, 2004, James Spencer, "Spencer" pled guilty to burglary as an habitual offender before the Circuit Court of Lowndes County, the Honorable Lee J. Howard presiding. Spencer was represented by Mr. Michael R. Farrow. C.P. 20-30. After advising and questioning Spencer and his counsel, Mr. Farrow, the trial court found that Spencer's plea was voluntarily and intelligently entered. C.P. 28.

A hearing was held on Spencer's attempt to withdraw his guilty plea prior to sentencing. R. 1-26. After the hearing, the trial court found that Spencer's plea was voluntarily and intelligently entered, and that Spencer understood the nature of the charges and the consequences of his plea. Spencer did not met his burden of proof for withdrawing his guilty plea. R. 1-26.

Prior to sentencing with notice to Spencer, and his counsel, Spencer's indictment was amended to reflect his habitual offender status under M. C. A. § 99-9-81, C.P. 31-32.

After a sentencing hearing with testimony and presentation of documentary evidence of Spencer's

parole or possibility of early release. C.P. 33.

On August 22, 2007, Spencer filed a hand written pro se Motion for Post Conviction relief. C.P. 49-72. Spencer claimed involuntary plea, and ineffective assistance of counsel(s). The trial court denied relief. C. P. 73-75. From that denial of relief, Spencer filed notice of appeal to the Supreme Court. C. P. 77.

II.

DID SPENCER RECEIVE EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL?

house on or about July 3, 2003 by a Lowndes County Grand jury. C.P. 4-5.

On May 17, 2004, Spencer pled guilty to burglary before the Circuit Court of Lowndes County, the Honorable Lee J. Howard presiding. Spencer was represented by appointed counsel Mr. Michael R. Farrow .C.P. 20-30. With the assistance of Mr. Farrow, Spencer completed a sworn "Petition To Enter A Guilty Plea." C. P. 6-14.

In that Petition, Spencer acknowledged that he was pleading guilty to burglary as a "§ 99-19-81 habitual offender." R. 6. Spencer stated that he realized that he was waiving his Constitutional rights to a trial with cross examination of witnesses, and a right against self incrimination. C.P. 7-8; 22-23. Spencer stated he knew "the three year minimum" and "the twenty five year maximum" sentence he could receive for a conviction for burglary of a dwelling. R. 8. Spencer admitted that he was guilty of burglarizing Ms. Bigelow's house. C.P. 10; R. 10. He admitted that he "was satisfied with the advise and help " provided by his counsel, Mr. Farrow. C.P. 10.

Spencer was also present at his guilty plea hearing when his counsel stated that he was pleading guilty as an "habitual offender." C.P. 26. This was also acknowledged in his "Petition To Enter a Guilty Plea" in more than one place. C.P. 6-11. He admitted at his sentencing hearing that he had "four" prior felony convictions. R. 14.

After advising and questioning Spencer and his counsel, Mr. Farrow, at Spencer's guilty plea hearing, the trial court found that Spencer's plea was "freely, voluntarily, knowingly and intelligently entered. "C.P. 28. Prior to sentencing with notice to Spencer, Spencer's indictment was amended to reflect his habitual offender status under M. C. A. § 99-9-81. C.P. 31-32. The trial court found there was sufficient evidence for finding that Spencer qualified for enhanced

one year in incarceration. C.P. 16-18.

Prior to his sentencing, Spencer filed a pro se motion to withdraw his guilty plea. R. 5.

A hearing was held on Spencer's attempt to withdraw his guilty plea prior to sentencing. R. 1-26. Mr. Farrow requested permission to withdraw from representing Spencer which was granted. Mr. Spencer was represented at the withdrawal request hearing by Mr. Gary Goodwin. R. 1.

After hearing testimony from Spencer, and the prosecution, the trial court found that Spencer's plea had been voluntarily and intelligently entered. He found that Spencer understood "the nature of the charges and the consequences of his plea." The Court found Spencer had not met his burden of proof for establishing any valid reason for withdrawing his guilty plea. R. 1-26.

After a sentencing hearing with presentation of documentary evidence, the trial court found sufficient evidence for establishing that Spencer was a M. C. A. §99-19-81 habitual offender. R. 24. The record reflects that the prosecution's motions to amend the indictment to show Spencer qualified for enhanced punishment were filed on May 18, 2004 and June 9, 2004. C.P. 16-18. The Order approving the formal amendment was entered on August 17, 2004. C.P. 31-32. On August 17, 2004, Spencer was sentenced to serve a twenty five year sentence without parole or possibility of early release. C.P. 33.

On August 22, 2007, Spencer filed a hand written pro se motion for post conviction relief. C.P. 49-72. Spencer claimed involuntary plea, improper habitual offender sentencing, and ineffective assistance of counsel. The trial court denied relief. C. P. 73-75. From that denial of relief, Spencer filed notice of appeal to the Supreme Court. C. P. 77.

Motion For Post Conviction relief should be denied without a hearing. C.P. 73-75.

Spencer's claims for relief were contradicted by his answers under oath at his guilty plea hearing, as well as by his sworn statements corroborated by his guilty plea counsel included in his "Petition To Enter A Guilty Plea." C.P. 6-17; 19-29. Wright v. State, 577 So. 2d 387, 390 (Miss. 1991).

These documents reflect that Spencer understood the nature of the burglary charge. He understood the twenty five year maximum sentence for a M. C. A. § 99-19-81 habitual offender. He admitted that he had not been coerced or promised anything in exchange for his guilty plea and that he was guilty of burglarizing Ms. Bigelow's dwelling. C.P. 27. He acknowledged knowing he was waiving his right to a trial with cross examination and a right against self incrimination. C.P. 6-17; 19-29.

In his petition, Spencer acknowledged knowing that he was being charged as a M.C. A. § 99-19-81 habitual offender, was "satisfied with the advise and help he(Mr. Farrow) has given me." C.P. 10. He also acknowledged that as a result of a plea agreement with the prosecution, an additional robbery charge was to be dismissed. C.P. 8; 28-29.

2. The record reflects that Spencer received effective assistance of counsel. Both Mr. Farrow and Mr. Goodwin represented Spencer professionally, given the charges against him and evidence and his own admission of numerous prior convictions. Spencer acknowledged the evidence which the prosecution had against him on the burglary charge. C.P. 27-28. He stated in his sworn Petition, "I committed the offense." C.P. 10.

There is no evidence of any erroneous or misleading advise provided to Spencer that could be considered an improper inducement to plead guilty. Spencer indicated that he was "satisfied"

counsel, Mr. Farrow. R. 25.

In addition, there were no affidavits included with Spencer's petition with the trial court. Nor was there any statement of "good cause" for whey they could not be obtained. See M. C. A. § 99-39-9(1)(e).

# THE RECORD REFLECTS A VOLUNTARY PLEA AND A VALID AMENDMENT OF SPENCER'S INDICTMENT TO REFLECT HIS HABITUAL OFFENDER STATUS.

In Spencer's motion for post conviction relief, he claimed that his plea was involuntarily entered, that he was not properly advised, given a proper hearing or shown to have been an habitual offender. Motion page 50-51.

To the contrary, the record indicates that the trial court correctly found, based upon the record, that Spencer's Motion For Post Conviction relief should be denied without a hearing. C.P. 73-75. The record from Spencer's guilty plea hearing indicated that both he and his counsel, Mr. Farrow, had submitted a sworn "Petition To Enter A Guilty Plea." C.P. 6-11. They were also questioned by the trial court as to Spencer's understanding of the nature of the burglary charge and the consequences of his plea as an habitual offender. C.P. 20-29.

In Alexander v. State, 605 So. 2d 1170, 1172 (Miss. 1992), this Court found, in accord with Boykin v Alabama, 395 U. S. 238, 242 (1969), that a defendant must be advised and understand "the nature of the charge against him and the consequences of his plea." This is necessary if the plea is to be accepted on the record as voluntarily and intelligently entered.

A plea of guilty is not binding upon a criminal defendant unless it is entered voluntarily and intelligently. Myers v. State, 583 So. 2d 174, 177 (Miss. 1991). A plea is deemed "voluntary and intelligent" only where the defendant is advised concerning the nature of the charge against him and the consequences of the plea.. See Wilson v. State, 577 So. 2d 394, 396-97 (Miss. 1991). Specifically, the defendant must be told that a guilty plea involves a waiver of the right to a trial by jury, the right to confront adverse witnesses, and the right to protection against self incrimination. Boykin v. Alabama, 395 U.S. 238, 23 L. Ed. 2d 274, 89 S. Ct. 1709 (1969). Rule 3.03 of the Uniform Criminal Rules of Circuit Court Practice additionally requires, inter alia, that the trial judge "inquire and determine" that the accused understands the maximum and minimum penalties to which he may be

Plea," as well as his answers to the trial court's questions at his guilty plea hearing, he admitted that he understood he was waiving crucial constitutional rights. He specifically stated that he understood that he was waiving his right to a trial by a jury of his peers with a right of cross examination as well as a right against self incrimination. C.P. 7-8; 22. Spencer was thirty one years old with a tenth grade education when he pled guilty. C.P. 23.

Spencer stated that he understood the burglary charge and that he was guilty of committing the offense. C.P. 27-28. He understood the twenty five maximum sentence for a conviction for burglary as an habitual offender could result in only one sentence, twenty five years without parole.. C.P. 26.

Court: You understand that on a plea of guilty to this charge as an habitual offender, the only sentence I can sentence you to then would be the maximum sentence?

Spencer: Yes, sir.

Court: That's twenty five years and a fine of \$10,000.

Spencer: Yes, sir.

Court: The only sentence I can do. Do you understand that?

Spencer: Yes, sir. C.P. 27. (Emphasis by Appellee).

Spencer admitted that he had not been coerced or promised anything in exchange for his guilty plea. C.P. 27 Spencer also admitted both in his petition and before the trial court that he understood that he was pleading guilty as "an habitual offender." C.P. 8-10; 26.

Farrow: Your Honor, this will be habitual offender.

He also acknowledged knowing that an additional pending burglary charge was being returned to the prosecutor's files. C.P. 28-29

After hearing from Spencer as well as the prosecution, the trial court found that Spencer had not met his burden of proof for showing that his guilty plea should be withdrawn. R. 19. The trial court found, based upon the record summarized above, that Spencer's guilty plea had been voluntarily and intelligently entered. There was sufficient evidence for determining that Spencer understood "the nature of the charges and the consequences of his guilty plea to burglary."

As stated by the trial court:

The Court feels that the defendant has not met his burden, and the Court does hereby deny his motion to withdraw his plea of guilty. I am now ready to begin the sentencing phase of the defendant's case. State, there is a motion to amend the indictment in the court file.

Faver: Yes, Your Honor. R. 19.

The record also reflects that at a separate sentencing hearing, after hearing testimony and reviewing documentation from the Department of Corrections, the trial court found there was sufficient evidence for concluding that Spencer had more than two prior felony offenses for which he had serve at least a year's sentence. R. 1-24. Therefore, it could be determined that Spencer was a M. C. A. §99-19-81 habitual offender for sentencing purposes, as he had previously acknowledged knowing.

Court: The Court has now signed the order allowing the amendment of the indictment and based on the proof presented and the evidence does hereby find that the defendant is an habitual 99-19-81 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 as amended. Therefore, as this court told the defendant when he entered his plea of guilty, there is only one sentence available. R. 24. (Emphasis by Appellee).

inadequate evidence that he was an habitual offender were contradicted by the record from Spencer's guilty plea and the sworn statements of Spencer and his counsel included in his "Petition To Enter A Guilty Plea." C.P. 6-13. Spencer stated at section number 3 of his Petition, . " I wish to plead guilty to the charge of (99-19-81) burglary of dwelling (habitual offender)." C.P. 6. (Emphasis by Appellee).

As stated by the trial court in denying post conviction relief:

The petitioner filed a motion alleging his guilty plea was made involuntarily because he pled guilty not realizing that he would be sentenced as an habitual offender. A review of the Petitioner's file show this claim to be false. The petitioner's sworn and notarized guilty plea petition entered on May 17, 2004 shows that the petitioner was pleading guilty as an habitual offender and would be sentenced as an habitual offender. The State's first Motion to Amend Indictment was filed on May 18, 2004 and their second Amended Motion To Amend Indictment was filed on June 9, 2004, both pursuant to Rule 7.09 of the Uniform Rules of Circuit and County Court Practice which states in part "indictments may also be amended to charge the defendant as an habitual offender." The order amending the indictment was filed August 17, 2004 and the Petitioner was sentenced the same day.

Therefore, pursuant to the Mississippi Supreme Court's ruling in **Wright v. State** (Miss. 1991), 577 So. 2d 387 which states in part: "where an affidavit is overwhelmingly belied by unimpeachable documentary evidence in the record, such as, for example, a transcript or written statements of the affiant to the contrary to the extent that the court can conclude that the affidavit is a sham no hearing is required.," the court finds the Petitioner's claims have no merit, and thereby the Petitioner's motion is accordingly dismissed. C.P. 74-75. (Emphasis by Appellee)

The Appellee would submit that the record summarized and cited above indicates that the trial court correctly found from documents summarized in the instant cause that Spencer "understood the nature of the charge and the consequences of his guilty plea" as a § 99-19-81 habitual offender. This issue is lacking in merit.

prong of the **Strickland** test, we find that there is no merit to the ineffective assistance of counsel claim raised by Johnston.

In Ferguson v. State, 507 So. 2d 94, 97 (Miss. 1987), quoting Strickland, 466 U S at 687,

104 S. Ct. 2052.

Although it need not be outcome determinative in the strict sense, it [deficient assistance of counsel] must be grave enough to 'undermine confidence' in the reliability of the whole proceeding.

The record reflects that as a result of Mr. Farrow's services Spencer avoided prosecution on an additional felony charge for robbery. C.P. 28-29; R. 25. That charge could have greatly increased the period of incarceration Spencer would be required to serve before being released from prison.

In addition, the record reflects that Spencer indicated in his Petition that he was "satisfied with" the services and help provided by Mr. Farrow. C.P. 10. And finally, Spencer stated in his Petition and through his counsel at his guilty plea hearing that he was pleading guilty as "an habitual offender" with "four" prior felony convictions and a pending charge which he acknowledged to the trial court. C.P. 26; 26. Through the efforts of his counsel, this additional charge was retired to the prosecutor's files. R. 25.

Court: You're sure you've only got three felony convictions?

Spencer: It's four.

Court: Four?

Spencer: Yes, sir. C.P. 25. (Emphasis by Appellee).

The record reflects that Spencer received effective assistance of counsel given the nature of the evidence against him. This would include not only Spencer's admission of having

Respectfully submitted,

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY:

W. GLENN WATTS

SPECIAL T ATTORNEY GENERAL

MISSISSIPPI BAR

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680 certify that I have this day mailed, postage prepaid, a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE to the following:

Honorable Lee J. Howard Circuit Court Judge Post Office Box 1344 Starkville, MS 39760

Honorable Forrest Allgood District Attorney Post Office Box 1044 Columbus, MS 39703

James E. Spencer, #75233 D.C.F. 3800 County Road Greenwood, MS 38930

This the 21st day of March, 2008.

W. GLENN WATTS

SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680